CITY OF ROELAND PARK, KANSAS
GOVERNING BODY WORKSHOP MINUTES
ROELAND PARK CITY HALL
4600 WEST 51st STREET, ROELAND PARK, KS 66205 
March 18, 2024, 6:00 P.M.

Page | 8 	 Roeland Park Governing Body Workshop Minutes – March 18, 2024 
 
•  Michael Poppa, Mayor
[bookmark: _Hlk98494400]•  Emily Hage, Council Member
•  Benjamin Dickens, Council Member 
•  Jan Faidley, Council Member
•  Jennifer Hill, Council Member

•  Tom Madigan, Council Member
[bookmark: _Hlk98494452]•  Jeffrey Stocks, Council Member      
•  Matthew Lero, Council Member
•  Kate Raglow, Council Member


•  Keith Moody, City Administrator
•  Jennifer Jones-Lacy, Asst. City Admin.
•  Kelley Nielsen, City Clerk 
•  John Morris, Police Chief 
•  Donnie Scharff, Public Works Director


                      
[bookmark: _Hlk502731979]Admin			Finance			Safety			Public Works
[bookmark: _Hlk134677287]Lero			Stocks			Hage			Raglow
Faidley			Dickens			Hill			Madigan

(Roeland Park Governing Body Workshop Meeting Called to Order at 6:42 p.m.)
  
I.	MINUTES
	A.	Governing Body Workshop Meeting Minutes March 4, 2024

CMBR Madigan stated he had some problems with the minutes in that some of his comments were missing.  He had asked whether Councilmembers would be able to be primary or alternate liaisons to committees and the Mayor said yes, they could.  He also suggested that Council candidates announce their intention and state that at the first meeting of the month and for the election to be held at the second meeting of the month.  CMBR Hage had stated she liked that idea.  He added that the Mayor’s comments of speaking at the first meeting was included but there was nothing about voting at the second meeting.  CMBR Madigan said the minutes do not reflect what was said.

City Clerk Nielsen asked that CMBR Madigan email her with what he would like added to the minutes so they will be included.	

II.   DISCUSSION ITEMS
1.  Review Chapter 2 of the City Code

Ms. Jones-Lacy stated the sections in red are either for recommended change or discussion.  She noted that the pronouns have changed, the section on pit bulls is to be removed, and that the City does not operate an animal control shelter as they contract with the city of Mission for animal control services.  

CMBR Faidley asked if Mission contracts with an animal shelter.  Deputy Chief Honas said that they use Melissa’s Second Chances but is unsure whether they euthanize animals.   

CMBR Hage asked if Roeland Park’s code is in alliance with Mission.  City Manager Moody said that Roeland Park is more restrictive in their regulations than Mission, but they would follow Roeland Park’s regulations per their contract.  

CMBR Madigan asked about Item (f) in red.  Ms. Jones-Lacy said that was identified as a point of conversation and blue marks the changes.  

CMBR Hill asked about the process and rules for disposing of an animal.  Deputy Chief Honas said that Mission does have a freezer, and they would do the proper disposal from the animal at that point on.  Roeland Park can call, and it is available anytime, if needed. 

CMBR Hage asked if the code says anything about a resident having a deer carcass in their basement.  Deputy Chief Honas said they had that question and did not find anything at that point in time to prohibit that in the code.  

Ms. Jones-Lacy continued the discussion noting they still require permits for owning large numbers of animals but did remove outdated dates that no longer apply from the language.   There is also clarification of dangerous versus vicious animals.

CMBR Lero stated he has a former co-worker whose dog bit someone and they could not get homeowner’s insurance.  He did note that special insurance is possible.

CMBR Hill asked if they can add wording about unprovoked bites.  

Mayor Poppa said that essentially you cannot have a dangerous dog anyway and you cannot get insurance, so he suggested getting rid of the insurance proviso.  Ms. Jones-Lacy said there is a definition for dangerous dog.  Also, the municipal court judge deems what dog is considered dangerous. 

CMBR Madigan said he has been a dog owner all his life and people will argue about what a dangerous animal is.   He said that by keeping the insurance requirement in there it eliminates the problem.  If they take it out, it leaves it up to a lot of arguments.  A dangerous dog needs to be out of the City, and if not, the owner is not getting the insurance it needs, then the dog needs to be removed.  

Ms. Jones-Lacy reviewed the definition of a dangerous dog, which includes a bite injury or death of another domestic animal.

CMBR Raglow asked if they need to add a timeframe for how long someone has to get rid of a dangerous dog.

CMBR Hill asked Deputy Chief Honas if, once an animal has bitten or attacked someone, are there laws in place and existing already that would eliminate the need for this?   He said they have had this before in court and the judge has made the decision, but he is unsure of the timeline and the process.  CMBR Hill asked if need to add something if there is a repeat offense.  

Mayor Poppa said they do not allow dangerous dogs and people cannot get insurance, so it is unenforceable.  City Attorney Walker stated that it is possible to obtain insurance, but it is not reasonably priced, which is different than being unattainable.

CMBR Raglow asked if they should give them an option to get the insurance over requiring them to get rid of their pet.  

CMBR Madigan said that when this was first passed the Council was using a passive-aggressive way to get rid of dogs by allowing them to keep the animal but only if they have insurance.  And if they cannot get the insurance, then they have to get rid of dog.  The intention at the beginning was if the dog bites, then they get it out of the City.  

CMBR Hage said there are a lot of pieces for compliance with a dangerous animal, and asked if Neighborhood Services verifies compliance.   Ms. Jones-Lacy said they ensure the items are complied with, but they have not had a situation in a long time.  

CMBR Hill said there are rules for being leashed and muzzled when outside.

CMBR Faidley said she looked up Melissa’s Second Chances and their site states they have a 99 percent save rate, which she considers to be pretty close to a no-kill shelter.    

There was agreement to remove the section on muzzling and pit bulls.  

CMBR Faidley recommended a correction on page 19, Section (c), which was to change “citizen” to “resident.”  There was agreement to change any incident of citizen to resident throughout all their ordinances. 

CMBR Hage was wondering about the wild animal to say, “including, but not limited to.”  

CMBR Hill asked about exotic cats as pets such as Bengals. 

CMBR Madigan said they are not able to add every non-domesticated wild animal to the list.  

There was Governing Body agreement to continue with the list as is.

CMBR Hill brought up the use of goats.  She said it is a great idea, is sustainable, even though the smell is not great.  She recommended that there be a time limit. 

CMBR Madigan said there is a difference between hiring goats and owning goats.

Ms. Jones-Lacy said they are considered livestock, but they can have provisions for the goats.  

CMBR Hage recommended a professional handler requirement.  

CMBR Faidley said they do have a connection with Goats on the Go, and they are very professional. 

CMBR Hill would like to see a permit for the residence. 

CMBR Madigan said since goats are considered livestock, they should be specific what livestock is allowed to come in and clear the land.

CMBR Raglow asked if there was anything about pet sitting in the code.  Ms. Jones-Lacy said in Section 2-21, there is language about animal foster homes.  They do require a permit to have an animal foster home and there are limitations.  

City Clerk Nielsen said they have not had anyone apply for a foster permit.  

CMBR Madigan said he has dog sat in the neighborhood but knew the dogs were all licensed.    

2. Discuss Narcan Administration Training and Use by the Police Department 

Deputy Chief Honas stated that CMBRS Raglow, Hill, and Hage brought this forward that Roeland Park officers carry Narcan and be allowed to deploy it if they need to.  They received a letter from their legal department, and they are okay with it.  Deputy Chief Honas talked about the costs.  He said there a lot of free programs and they will investigate whether they can get that supplied to their department.  He put a cost of $2,000 in the agenda item for supply of the Narcan and training, but first they will see what they can get donated.

CMBR Faidley said it sounds like they can get the Narcan for free and could they use the opiate settlement funds.  City Manager Moody said the use of those funds for this is entirely appropriate.  

CMBR Hage said there are different forms of naloxone, and they should be specific.  Some forms are not humane or compassionate to people.  If they do need to purchase the Narcan, it comes 45-70 a box and each pack has two doses.  There was a suggestion to carry it on their duty belt in a bag.  

Deputy Chief Honas said he already carries it as they have Narcan with the dog.  If approved, the officers would carry the Narcan on their person to make sure it stays in the correct temperature environment.  

CMBR Hage said the agency she works with would be happy to help. 

CMBR Hill would like to see all the officers have it. 

CMBR Madigan echoed CMBR Hill’s comments that all officers carry it.  He said if it saves one life it will be worth it.   He also noted that officers have so much on their belt already.  Deputy Chief Honas said it is a little pouch and does not take up much space.  He added that it is something they would like to carry.  

CMBR Raglow asked if there was anything else the Governing Body needs to do on this.  City Manager Moody said that because the item is less than $15,000, it does not require Council approval and can be approved administratively.  However, this is one of those times they like to make this part of the public record.  

Ms. Jones-Lacy added that they do have an ordinance to allow officers to use Narcan through an agreement with Johnson County.  They need to do that prior to deployment to give them authority to administer it.   City Attorney Walters said they will come up with the policy.

CMBR Hage noted there was an overdose recently at QuikTrip.  She said it is critical that first responders have the Narcan, but that businesses, hotels, and convenience stores also need to have it.

An ordinance will be presented at the next Council meeting. 

3.	Review and Preliminary Approval of 2025 Objectives

City Manager Moody reviewed the goals and objectives for 2025.  

A.  Advance Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion
     1.  Plan for 75th Anniversary Events for 2026

CMBR Faidley said she would like to see the community involvement element as suggested by CMBR Hage.  She said this could end up being a part-time job to try and organize.   

CMBR Hage said she has a lot of experience planning events.  The hope of this specific objective is to build in enough time so they are not rushing and being able to leverage the strengths of the committee in identifying the right goals.  She feels comfortable that Roeland Park loves to get together and sees a buy-in of support.  She hoped this would be a group effort.  

Mayor Poppa said it is a good opportunity to get people together.  An ad hoc committee could create the budget and a contract with a planner could be one of the budget items.

CMBR Madigan said he sees when businesses have an anniversary, they put that on everything, all their marketing, all going towards that one day, so they can enjoy the notoriety up to the event.  He added that the Historical committee wants to be involved in the event. 

CMBR Faidley asked about putting a dollar amount if it is needed.  CMBR Raglow said the planning would be for 2025 and they would not know costs until they start planning.  

CMBR Hill would like to put an earmark in for banners for the 75th Anniversary.  

There was agreement to move forward with the objective.  

B.  Prioritize Communication and Engagement with the Community 
     1.  Complete a Strategic Planning Process  

City Manager Moody put this item together as the last strategic plan was adopted in 2015.  He said this is an opportunity to develop an updated plan to work on and create a document that best serves them today.  

CMBR Raglow asked on average how often other cities review their strategic plan.  City Manager Moody said that ten years is common.  Roeland Park’s past ten years reflect a significant effort.  It is a good marker, but over a period of time things change.  

CMBR Madigan said he has experience with the last strategic committee as he was the chair of it.  The previous city clerk chose Washburn University as the facilitator.  He said that not being local caused problems in scheduling, and it took over 17 months for them to generate a report.  There was also discussion about using the UMKC School of Management.  He also questioned the amount of $60,000.  He noted that Ms. Jones-Lacy came to them during the last eight months of their strategic planning and was great at helping them complete it.  Also, Aaron Otto, the previous city administrator, was a great resource for getting professional people to come and speak with them.  He would like those types of contracts not to be overlooked when undertaking this process.  

CMBR Raglow asked if those resources would be available to them as a part of the budget item.  City Manager Moody said it would be an RFP process and that education-based organizations can respond to the RFP as well.  He noted that private entities tend to be more expensive and that was who he used to base the budget item amount.  

CMBR Faidley noted some typos and CMBR Raglow recommended e-mailing them to City Manager Moody.

There was agreement to move forward with this objective. 

     2.  Create a Public Art Master Plan for Roeland Park 

This objective was put forward by the Arts Committee.   CMBR Faidley, as liaison to the committee, said they should advocate for all the arts in Roeland Park to include performing arts, theater, music, and visual arts.  The committee has been primarily focused on the visual arts.  Having a master plan will help direct their energies in this area and make their decisions more transparent.   They are enthusiastically endorsing this objective. 

Mayor Poppa stated he likes the objective and agrees with the committee to have that strategic plan will make them more transparent.  He suggested that they earmark $30,000 for the objective, but that it not come out of their allocation which should go towards maintenance and procurement of art, and de-acquisition. 

CMBR Madigan said he would second that as this serves the community.  

CMBR Hill said she was curious how this is different than some of the work in the past noting they catalogued the works and different art in the City.    

CMBR Faidley said that after Roe 2020 a lot of the art was relocated or did not go back out.  Some items need work or need to be decommissioned, which is a difficult process.   The pamphlet that was put together was done by an intern and not a professional.  The master plan would also give them a professionally designed brochure.  They also need to be conscious of where they are putting the art before commissioning it.  The committee has primarily been directed at the visual arts and the master plan will allow them to start focusing on the other areas of art. 

CMBR Hage said this is great.  She said she would love there to be intention on appropriate placement of art.  She said that sometimes they forget that kids are welcome visitors and want to have stuff that kids can touch.

Ms. Jones-Lacy added the idea behind the master plan is to be more strategic on placement and what type of art is in various locations.  It is also to have a public engagement component.  

CMBR Faidley noted how the committee saved money to buy the entryway piece for the City.  

Mayor Poppa reiterated he did not want to see the committee use their saved funds for the master plan but to be used for the procurement of art and the $30,000 request should be separate.  

All Governing Body members agreed to the separate $30,000 allotment and the creation of an Arts Committee master plan. 

C.  Improve Community Assets
      1.  Improve and Expand Nall Park Mountain Bike Trail

CMBR Lero stated the biggest thing is the trail has not been adequately maintained due to miscommunication with Urban Trail Company.  He said the trail is popular among hardcore mountain biking folks and is well used.  Due to the conditions, it is only used by more advanced users and some hikers.   The cost of the objective is primarily to rent equipment.  Most of the labor will be through UTC, volunteers, and cyclists.   

CMBR Raglow asked if this item goes with the Nall Park Master Plan.  

CMBR Lero said the master plan deals with the park itself.  In the master plan it discusses adding additional elements to the existing mountain bike trail but does not call for significant changes to the trail.    

CMBR Hage said,
 when they are working on this, they need to be consistent and asked if there is a different strategy for maintenance.  

CMBR Lero said that JCPRD has spoken about forming a mountain bike and single trail and JCPRD would be responsible for trail maintenance in the metro area.  They could discuss taking over the Nall Park trails.  

CMBR Madigan said he tried for a year to get a hold of Urban Trail and was told they were on their list.  He asked if they had decided to come back.

CMBR Lero thinks there will be more open lines of communication than in the past now that one of the members on the JCPRD board is also a member of the UTC board.   CMBR Madigan commended CMBR Lero for contacting Urban Trail. 

CMBR Faidley asked who the trail steward was.  CMBR Lero said it is “Jordan” who used to be in Mission.  He said that UTC also encourages their trail stewards not to deal with things such as fallen trees.  This is where the partnership needs to be to allow Public Works to do some of the more dangerous things.  

CMBR Faidley also wanted to know if they have contemplated signage.  CMBR Lero said JCPRD and UTC are working together to have united signage throughout the metro.  

There was agreement to move forward with this objective. 

     2.  Add Covered Benches at Bus Stops in Roeland Park 

CMBR Dickens presented this objective stating it is not good to have to stand out in the weather while waiting at the stop.  He noted there are artistic options, and they also help the less fortunate.  

CMBR Hill said she has seen people sitting on shopping carts or sitting on the ground and finds that degrading.  

CMBR Faidley asked what input there has been with Johnson County Transit as they have history with them regarding benches and shelters.  City Manager Moody said he asked them what the criteria at a bus stop is that warrants a shelter.  They said the City’s ridership along the route is not high enough to warrant a shelter and, therefore, they are not willing to pay to install a shelter.  The objective reflects City funding with the anticipation of eight locations.  Currently, at some of the bus stops it is very tight in the right-of-way and they would have to place a shelter on the sidewalk that was just constructed, or they would have to get an access easement to set the shelter back of the sidewalk.  

CMBR Dickens added that he would also like to see a trashcan at the stops as well.  

CMBR Madigan these structures need to keep people out of the elements, but the ones pictured will not help in the Midwest or when the snow is blowing.   He would like to see something as a buffer.  He too finds it degrading to see someone squatting waiting for a bus and said this speaks bad of their community.  

CMBR Dickens said he likes the looks of the artistic benches but would want a fuller cover.  At this point, he is open to exploring any options but does want a place where people can sit and be out of the elements.

There was discussion of feasibility of units/shelters and whether an artistic element could be added. 

There was agreement for some sort of bus stop coverage, and it should be included in the future plan of transit.

CMBR Faidley asked if they can get more information on Johnson County’s future transit planning.  

D.  Keep Our Community Safe & Secure
     1.  Establish a Standardized Reporting System for Police Department Activities through LEFTA
           Law Enforcement Software

This objective was brought forward by the Police Department.  Mayor Poppa said this item looks like it is for training or vehicle tracking.  He asked if the annual subscription covers more than that.   Deputy Chief Honas said that it covers fleet management, vehicle pursuits, complaints and compliments made about the officers, stop data, internal affairs, and use of force.  He said it tracks and utilizes the most modern approach of organization of police operations and reporting.  

CMBR Faidley asked if other police departments use this software, and does it include training for all personnel.  Deputy Chief Honas said other department in Johnson County use other programs.  Several companies offer the same, but each is different in how they function.  He noted that Mission uses LEFTA.   Prairie Village uses a different one.  With LEFTA, each officer gets a profile and everything they do in their Roeland Park career stays in their profile including complaints and compliments.  If an officer receives multiple complaints, the software will notify supervisors.  On the flipside, if an officer has been complimented, it will notify the supervisor, so they know that officer needs to be recognize for their performance.  The software monitors the good with the bad.  It also helps the field training officer who is still doing everything with pen and paper and having to enter everything manually.  The software will streamline this, so they are able to note everything in the field.  The software will also take note of every contact every officer makes.  

CMBR Lero asked if there is data, are they are missing out on now by not having this tool?  Deputy Chief Honas said there is not, but this software does give them an opportunity to see everything that is going on and it analyzes the data for them. 

CMBR Faidley noted the one-year cost for start-up and inquired whether they have an option of revisiting it for effectiveness after an initial year.  Deputy Chief Honas said it is for a two-year contract.  

Mayor Poppa asked if LEFTA had access to their data and Deputy Chief Honsa said that only their Police Department would have access.  

CMBR Hage asked if they need to sign an agreement to ensure confidentiality.  Deputy Chief Honas said they would. 

There was agreement to move forward on this objective.

E.  Provide Great Customer Service 
     1.  Add a Full Time Management Analyst Position

Ms. Jones-Lacy and City Clerk Nielsen submitted this item. 

Mayor Poppa said he fully supports this and knows how much this will add to the productivity of staff and to the community.  

CMBR Raglow agreed with that.

CMBR Madigan said the work Ms. Jones-Lacy and Ms. Nielsen are doing is superhuman.  He asked where this person was going to office.   Ms. Jones-Lacy said they have not sorted that detail out, but on an interim basis and while learning the ropes, they would be at the intern location over to the side.  She said there are options, and they will work through those details.

CMBR Faidley said this is a different process than some of the other objectives and is an ongoing cost.  City Manager Moody said that he is a fiscal conservative and quizzed the presenters on how this would be paid for.  He noted that excess reserves in the General Fund are moved towards capital improvements and this position would result in less funds being transferred.  It is similar to when the City decided to take over operations of the pool and a Parks and Rec Superintendent position was created and funded.  They did not have the time to go through an objective process about the position, but it was related to objectives as discussions about the poot.  They do recognize this position is needed.  In looking at funding, do they consider less for a capital project, no staff pay increases, reducing staff, or reducing benefits.  In a pinch those tend to be the areas where you would look for funds.  He said this position is an investment.  He recognizes it and supports it.  He also agreed that they do more as staff than they used to, but they do it better, and that is from a Roeland Park perspective.  

Ms. Jones-Lacy added that this will help existing staff and support and promote what they are trying to do.  

CMBR Faidley asked how this would change the graph of staff to residents.  Ms. Jones-Lacy said they are currently at 5.8 and with this position it would put them at 6, which does not really move them anywhere.

There was agreement to move forward with this objective.

F.  Cultivate a Rewarding Work Environment
     1. Create and Employee Engagement Committee

Ms. Jones-Lacy said this is within the City Administrator’s spending authority, but they want to bring City staff, preferably those not in a director’s position, to lead an effort to make our staff more engaged and to have a fun and integrative atmosphere.   This is an opportunity to engage and plan employee outings to bring people together.  

CMBR Madigan said it is a great idea and would like to see Council involved.  He said it is important for City employees to know that the Council appreciates what they do.

There was agreement to move forward with this objective.

H.  Work to Implement Strategic Goals. 
     1.  Hire a Consultant to Complete an Assessment of Current Carbon Emissions for City Facilities
          and Develop a Plan to Implement the Regional Climate Action Plan at the City Level. 

CMBR Faidley, as secondary liaison to the Sustainability Committee, stated they are supportive of this.  They hope to continue to lead in the environmental initiatives.  She also noted that Johnson County Commissioner Chair Mike Kelly (former Roeland Park mayor) is paying attention to this issue. 

CMBR Hage asked about establishing a baseline.  Ms. Jones-Lacy said they can determine a baseline from a certain point of time such as from the installation of the solar panels.  An analysis was completed in 2012 for the Community Center and City Hall by George Butler and included how to improve efficiency.   The analysis showed they were pretty efficient at that time and this assessment would be to show what impacts future changes might make. 

There was agreement for this objective.

4.	Review Budget Engagement Software

Ms. Jones-Lacy said in response to the budget objective for this year, she has provided a demo with Balancing Act so they can look at the software they provide.  Simulations are linked in the agenda packet.  There is an engagement tool for residents to determine trade-offs, what to fund, and what they would not fund.  

CMBR Hage asked if the taxpayer receipt would be mailed or if it would be online.  Ms. Jones-Lacy said they do not have online access, but they may do some in-person events to show how it works.  

 Mayor Poppa said this is a result of their discussion of a participatory budget process.  He asked when it would be up.  Ms. Jones-Lacy said it would take a couple of weeks to build but may take two or three months to go live.  

CMBR Raglow asked if they have a way to validate the data they are inputting for Roeland Park.  Ms. Jones-Lacy said they would provide the data and verify it once it is inputted. 

CMBR Faidley thanked them for bringing the pop-up events and having budget engagement with the residents.  CMBR Faidley asked if there was any feedback from any other cities on the software.  Ms. Jones-Lacy said she spoke with several communities across the country and received good responses.  The cities received valuable feedback from their residents who appreciated the ability to participate in the budget process this way.  She also spoke with finance directors who stated they found value in it.  

A.	Committee Minutes
	1.  Ad-Hoc Historical Committee Meeting Minutes February 22, 2024
	2.  Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Committee Meeting Minutes February 27, 2024
	3.  Sustainability Committee Meeting Minutes February 1, 2024

III.  NON-ACTION ITEMS

There were no minutes presented. 

IV.  ADJOURN

	CMBR Raglow adjourned the meeting.
	
(Roeland Park Workshop Adjourned at 9:03 p.m.)
